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Pendingbeforethis Court aretwo motionsfiled by theOffice of ProfessionalEmployees

internationalUnion (“OPEIU”), its Local Union 108 (“Local 108”), aswell asthe individual pilots

plaintiffs (the “Individual Pilots”) (collectively, “the Unions”),asfollows: (1) “Motion for Leave

to File SecondAmendedSupplementalComplaintforInjunctiveandOtherReliefUndertheRailway

LaborAct in theReturnto Work Suit” [Doe.315]; and (2) “Motion for Leaveto File an Amended

Answerto PHI’sComplaintandUnions’ Fifth AmendedCounterclaimin theBad FaithBargaining

Suit” [Doe.316]. PHI opposescertainaspectsof bothmotions[Does.320 & 321].

I. FactualandProceduralBackground

Thefactsandproceduralbackgroundofthis matterhavebeenset forth in meticulousdetail

by theCourtin previousrulings andwill not be repeatedhere.

IL Law andAnalysis

Amendmentof pleadingsis governedby Rule 15 of theFederalRulesof Civil Procedure.

Rule 15(a)providesin relevantpart:

(a) AmendmentsBeforeTrial.
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(1) Amendingas a Matter of Course.A partymayamendits pleadingonce as a

matterof course:

(A) beforebeing servedwith a responsivepleading;or

(B) within 20 daysafterservingthepleadingif aresponsivepleadingis not
allowedandthe actionis notyet on thetrial calendar.

(2) OtherAmendments.In all othercases,apartymayamendits pleadingonly with
theopposingparty’s writtenconsentor thecourt’sleave.Thecourtshouldfreely give
leavewhenjusticeso requires.

Fed.R.Civ.P.15(a).

TheFifth Circuit hasheldthepolicy of thefederalrulesis to permit liberalamendmentto

facilitatedeterminationof claimsonthemeritsandto preventlitigation from becomingatechnical

exercisein the finepointsofpleading. See,e.g, Dussouyv. Gui/Coastmv, Corp., 660 F.2d594,

598 (
5

th Cir. 1981),citing Fomanv. Davis,371 U.S. at 182,83 S.Ct. at 230,9L.Ed.2dat 225-26;

Conleyv. Gibson,355U.S. 41,48,78 S.Ct.99, 103,2L.Ed,2d80,86(1957);Shermanv. Haiihauer.

455 F.2d 1236, 1242 (5t~~Cir. 1972).Thus, unlessthereis a substantialreasonto deny leaveto

amend,theFifth Circuit hasheldthat thediscretionofthedistrictcourt is notbroadenoughto permit

denial. Dussouy,660 F.2d at598, citing LoneStarMotor Importv. CitroenCars,288 F.2d69, 75

(SthCir 1961).

With theforegoingin mind,on November6, 2008,this Courtconductedastatusconference

in opencourtwith all partiesandtheircounselto addressseveralissuesthat requiredclarification

in this case,including the claims of the partiesasrepresentedin theirpleadings,aswell as the

requestsfor relief advancedby eachparty. At that conference,this Court madeclear it would

entertainmotionsto amendthepleadingsto give thepartiesan opportunity to “clean up” and/or

clarify theirpleadingspriorto trial andsetabriefingschedulein connectiontherewith. TheCourt
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emphasizedthepurposeoftheamendmentswasnot for anypartyto attemptto enlargeits pleadings

in any respect,but rather,to permitthepartiesto clarify theirclaimsandrequestsfor reliefprior to

trial.

TheUnions’ motionsto amendtheirpleadingsarenowbeforethis Court.

A. The Unions’ “Motion for Leave to File Second Amended Supplemental
Complaintfor InjunctiveandOtherReliefUndertheRailwayLaborAct in the
Returnto Work Suit” IDoc. 3151

ln this motion,theUnionsseekto amendtheircomplaintin theReturnto Work lawsuit. PIll

consentsto theproposedamendments,exceptfor two aspectsof theproposedamendments,which

PHI opposes,asfollows:

1. RLA Section2, Third

PHI contendstheUnions,in theirproposedamendment,set forth morethan 100 violations

ofSection2, ThirdoftheRLA, whichproseribes“interference,influence,orcoercionbyeitherparty

overthedesignationofrepresentativesby theother.”45 U.S.C.§ 152,Third (emphasisadded).PHI

arguesasfollows:

At page6 of theirMotion for Leaveto File their proposedamendedpleading,the
Unions statethat “[P]aragraphs41 through62 havebeenrevisedsignificantly in
order.. . (ii) to specify why the conductcomplainedof violatesRLA Section[J2,
Third. . . .“ (emphasisadded).Those paragraphscontain frequentallegationsof
“retaliation” for engagingin allegedlyprotectedactivity, of efforts to ‘~undermine”
the Unions,andof efforts to “coerce” the pilots “not to remainmembersand/or
supportersof theUnions.” (Proposedamendment,¶ 41, 42, 43, etc.).While these
allegationsmaysupportclaimsunderSection2, FourthoftheRLA, theysimply do
not pertain to the “designation” of the Unions as collective bargaining
representatives,which statusthe Unionsachievedin theyear2000.

PH1acknowledgestheUnions’ allegationswith respectto Section2, ThirdoftheRLA appear

in boththeoriginal andfirst supplementalcomplaintsfiled by theUnions,andthat,technically,the

proposedamendedallegationsdonotamountto an “expansion”ofthepleadings.Nevertheless,PHI
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notes this Court hasheretoforeexpressedconsternationas to whetherallegationssuchas the

foregoingactuallyconstitutea violation of Section2, Third of theRLA andobservestheUnions

havedeclinedto “cleanup” their pleadingsby deletingsuchunsupportedclaims. PHI contendsit

will be forcedto movefor leaveto seekdismissaloftheclaimsassertedunderSection2, Third,and

requeststhat this Court, instead,approvetheamendmentoftheUnions’ complaint,butonly on the

conditionthattheUnionsandtheIndividual Pilots withdrawtheirclaimsunderSection2, Third of

theRLA.

PHI’srequestis denied.To theextentPHIbelievesanyallegationcontainedin anypleading

filed by the Unionsdoesnot statea claim, PHI is requiredto follow the FederalRulesof Civil

Procedureandtheproceduralrules ofthis Court in seekingto havesuchan allegationand/orclaim

dismissed.This Courtwill not dismissan allegationcontainedin aproposedamendedpleadingon

groundsthe allegationfails to statea claim without allowing eachparty to fully and completely

addressthematterin briefsandwithoutconsideringtheappropriatelegal standardfor dismissalof

such claims. Consequently,PHI’s objection to this aspectof the Unions’ proposedamended

pleadingis OVERRULED.

2. TheUnions’ ClaimsRegardingSeniority

In Paragraph30 oftheir previouscomplaints,theUnionsand Individual Pilots allegedthe

following with respectto the issueof seniority:

[S]ince theUnions’ November10, 2006unconditionaloffer to returnto work, PHI
returnedindividual pilots to work out ofseniority order.’

PHI contendsthe foregoing allegation connecteddirectly to the Unions’ request for

1 SeeDoc. 194, Amended Verified Supplemental Complaint, etc., filed June 17, 2008, P. 22, ¶ 30)

(emphasisadded).
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preliminaryinjunctive relief,2

PHI contendsin their proposedamendedcomplaint, the Unions and Individual Pilots

“approachthematterof return-to-work-by-seniorityfrom a completelydifferentperspective,”and

now seekto allegea totally newtheoryof liability, asfollows:

Sincethe Unions’ November10, 2006unconditionaloffer to returnto work, PHI
returnedindividualpilotsto workwithoutregardto seniority.OncetheUnionsmade
the.. . offer to returnto work[,J PHI wasobligatedto returnpilots to workbasedon
neutralcriteria suchasseniority, availableaircraft openings,pilot qual(flcations,
pilot currency,governmentimposedrequirements,andmedicalqual~ications.

PHI contendstheforegoinglegaltheoryregardingseniorityisa“new” theoryofliability and

is no mere“clarification” of allegationspreviouslypled. PHI arguesthe Unions should not be

permittedto altertheirlegal theoriesandthefactualallegationsallegedto supporttheirclaimstwo

yearsafterthefact andafterdiscoveryinto suchallegationsandclaimshasclosed.At a minimum,

PHI arguestheUnionsmustbe requiredto statewhy so fundamentalan amendmentis necessary,

or how, theyassert,it merely“clarifies” previously-explicatedclaims.

After considerationoftheproposedpleadingandtheobjectionfiled by PHI, this Courtdoes

not find PHI’s argumentpersuasivegiven thefactsandhistoryof thiscase. Sincetheinceptionof

this lawsuit,theUnionshaveconsistentlyclaimedandarguedthatPHI violatedtheRLA in refusing

to returnthestriking pilotsto work on thebasisof seniorityrecall. Thus, this claim/argumenthas

beenbeforetheCourt andknownbytheparties— for thedurationof the lawsuit. Additionally, in

rulings issuedby this Court andextensivediscussionswith counsel,this issuehasbeendiscussed

2 See,e.g. CaseNo. 2243,Plaintiffs’ Motion for PreliminaryInjunction, filed November28, 2006,p. I, ¶ B

(“Order P141 to immediately reinstate..., in bidding seniority order, all pilots who did not return to work prior to
...November 10, 2006...;”) and Id.; Memorandum in Support of.. Motion for Preliminary Injunction, p. 8, ¶ F
(“PHI’s Individual Recallof Pilots Out of SeniorityOrder.. Violatesthe RLA
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within thebroadercontextof whetherthe Unions’ employeeswerereturnedto work by wayof

neutralcriteria. This Court concludesthat theUnions’ attemptto clarify its pleadingsdoesnot

prejudicePHI, inasmuchasPHI hasknownaboutthisargumentthroughoutthelawsuit. Thus,while

theUnion’s theoryofliability mayhavebroadened,its essentialclaim hasnot changed,and the

broadertheoryis notonewhichis, outsidetheactualpleadingsthemselves,new.3 ThisCourtnotes,

however,that if true prejudicewere to flow asa resultof the amendmentat this stageof the

litigation,theCourtwould not permittheamendment.However,thefactualbasiswhichtheUnions

nowwishtofbrmally adoptto supporttheir legal theoryhasbeenknownto PH! sincetheinception

ofthe litigation, and this Court concludesPHI will not be prejudicedby theformal amendmentin

question.

Consideringtheforegoing,it is ORDEREDthatPHI’s objectiontothisaspectoftheUnions’

proposedamendedpleadingis OVERRULED.

As bothofPHI’sobjectionsto theUnions’ amendmentofits SecondAmendedSupplemental

Complaintin the Returnto Work lawsuithavebeenoverruled,it is ORDEREDthat the Unions’

“Motion forLeaveto FileSecondAmendedSupplementalComplaintfor InjunctiveandOtherRelief

UndertheRailwayLaborAct in theReturnto Work Suit” [Doc. 3151 is GRANTED, andthe Clerk

ofCourtis ORDEREDto file theUnions’ “SecondAmendedSupplementalComplaintfor Injunctive

And OtherReliefUndertheRailwayLaborAct in theReturnto Work Suit” into therecord.

B. TheUnions’“Motion forLeaveto FileanAmendedAnswerto PHI’sComplaint
and Unions’ Fifth AmendedCounterclaimin the BadFaithBargainingSuit”
IDoc. 3161

In this motion, theUnionsseekto amendtheirAnswerandFourthAmendedCounterclaim

This Courtnotesit is notuncommonfora changein the legaltheoryuponwhich a partybasesits claim to
occuroncediscoveryis conductedin any litigation matter.
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in theBadFaithBargaininglawsuit, in aneffort to clari& theirpleadingsassuggestedby this Court

at the statusconferenceconductedwith all partieson November6, 2008. PHI consentsto the

proposedamendments,exceptfor oneaspect.Specifically,PHI objectstothe inclusionofproposed

Paragraph39, whichPHI allegescontainsthe“new allegation”thatPHI violatedsection2, First of

theRailwayLaborAct (“RLA”), 45 U.S.C. § 152, First,

when,shortly after the parties’ supermediation sessionended,PHI refusedthe
Unions’proposalthat [~Iif PHI would increaseitseconomicoffer byanapproximate
One Million to One Million and a Half-Dollars, the Unions would acceptthe
remainderof PHI’s final bargainingproposal.

PHI contendsthis “new allegation”is itself raisedasa “claim,” becausetheUnions later

pleadthat“[e]achofthe individual actsofPHI.. .standingaloneandin theirtotality violateSection

2, First of the [RLA.. ..].“ PHI contendsneitherthis “allegation,” nor the“claim” it purportsto

represent,wasraisedin any ofthe Unions’ previouspleadingsandis an attempton thepartof the

Unionsto enlargetheirpleadingsafterthediscoveryperiodhasended.PHI contendsit would have

conducteddiscoveryregardingthis newclaim hadthe claim beenpledwhendiscoverywas still

ongoing.

After reviewof theproposedpleadingandPHI’sobjection,this Courtconcludesthat to the

extenttheallegationatissuecouldbeconsideredanew,stand-aloneclaim, PHI’sobjectioniswell-

founded,andtheamendmentshouldnotbepermitted.ThisCourthasrepeatedlyemphasizedneither

partywill bepermittedto createnewclaimsby wayofamendingtheirpleadingsat this latejuncturc,

giventheproceduralhistoryofthiscaseandcompletionofdiscovery— thisCourtwill not restatethe

protractedandconvolutedproceduralhistoryherebutadoptsthefull proceduralhistoryof thiscase

in supportoftheCourt’sruling this date thus,theUnionswill not be permittedto stateanewbad

faith bargainingclaim basedon the newly-pledfacts. However,to the extentthe “new” factual
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allegationset forth by theUnions in theirproposedpleadingmerely supportsthealready-existing

claimforviolationsoftheRLA, andto theextentthis factualallegationis oneof which PHI hashad

notice andwould notbe overly prejudicial,theCourt shouldallow theamendment.

Consideringtheforegoing,IT IS ORDEREDthat thepartieshaveten(10) daysto submit

supplementalbriefs,no morethanfive pageseach,addressingthisdistinction. Therefore,thisCourt

DEFERSon this aspectof theUnions’ motion.

THUS DONE AND SIGNEDin Lafayette,Louisiana,this ___________ dayof January,

REBECCAIf. D&IE1~tY~
UNITED ST TES DISTRICT JUDGE
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